
AGENDA 
Special Board Meeting  

March 25, 2021 
3:00 PM 

4260 54th Street, San Diego, CA, 92115 

Teleconference Locations: 
16755 Coyote Bush Drive, San Diego, CA, 92127 

10210 Genetic Center Drive, San Diego, CA, 92121 
1251 Via Mil Cumbres, Solana Beach, CA, 92075 

7013 Via Calafia, Carlsbad, CA, 92009 
8985 Idyllwild Lane, San Diego, CA, 92119 

5785 Odessa Ave, La Mesa, CA, 91942 

I. Call to Order (1 min) 

II. Public Comment (5  mins) 

AGENDA ITEMS: Any person may address the Board concerning any item on the agenda and may, at the 
discretion of the Board, be granted (5) minutes to make a presentation to the Board at the time a specific item 
is under discussion. Additional time may be granted if circumstances permit. The total time per agenda item 
devoted to presentation to the Board shall be determined based on the number of speakers wishing to address 
the board. However, this time will not exceed one-half (1/2) hour unless additional time is granted by the 
Board. All presentations shall be heard by the Board prior to the formal discussion of the agenda topic under 
consideration. 

III. Approval of Agenda  (1 min) 

IV. Discussion/Action Items  (20  mins)
A. Approve 2019-20 Final Audit Report

B. Review and Approve COVID-19 Prevention Program

C. Review and Approve COVID-19 School Guidance Checklist

V. Closed Session Pursuant to Ralph M. Brown Act Section 54957 (5  mins) 
1. Public Employment

Title: School  Director
VI. Adjournment

NOTICES 
I, Elias Vargas, School Director, herby certify that this agenda was posted as regulated by law on Wednesday, 
March 24, 2021, by 3:00 p.m. City Heights Preparatory Charter School does not discriminate on the basis of 
disability in the admission or access to, or treatment in employment in its programs or activities. Dr. Elias 
Vargas, School Director, has been designated to receive requests for disability-related modification or 
accommodation in order to enable individuals with disabilities to participate in City Heights Preparatory Charter 
School’s open and public meetings. Please notify Dr. Elias Vargas at (619) 795-3137 twenty-four (24) hours in 
advance, or as soon as possible, prior to disability accommodation being needed in order to participate in the 
meeting. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Board of Trustees of 
City Heights Preparatory Charter School 
San Diego, California 
 
Report on the financial statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of City Heights Preparatory Charter School, which comprise the 
statement of financial position as of June 30, 2020, and the related statement of activities, functional expenses, and cash 
flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements. 

Management’s Responsibility for the financial statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to 
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to 
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
City Heights Preparatory Charter School as of June 30, 2020, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. 
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Other Matters 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. The 
accompanying supplementary information identified in the table of contents, as required by the 2019-20 Guide for 
Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California 
Code of Regulations, Section 19810 is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the 
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly 
to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures, 
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used 
to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the 
information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 24, 2021, on our 
consideration of City Heights Preparatory Charter School’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal 
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the School’s internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance. 

 

El Cajon, California 
March 24, 2021 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Financial Position 

June 30, 2020 
               

 

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 1,149,030$       
Accounts receivable 152,027            
Prepaid expenses 27,453              
Security deposits 6,073                
Property and equipment, net 103,376            

Total Assets 1,437,959$       

Liabilities and Net Assets
Liabilities

Accounts payable 30,379$            
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 84,152              

Total Liabilities 114,531            
Net Assets

Without donor restrictions
Undesignated 1,212,403         
Invested in property and equipment, net of related debt 103,376            

1,315,779         

With donor restrictions
Restricted for state programs 3,238                
Restricted for local programs 4,411                

7,649                

Total Net Assets 1,323,428         
Total Liabilities and Net Assets 1,437,959$       
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Activities 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 

Without Donor 
Restrictions

With Donor 
Restrictions Total

Revenue, Support, and Gains
Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF) sources

State aid 416,881$           -$                   416,881$           
Education protection account state aid 22,716               -                     22,716               
Transfers in lieu of property taxes 762,091             -                     762,091             
Total LCFF sources 1,201,688          -                     1,201,688          

Federal contracts and grants -                     204,701             204,701             
State contracts and grants 18,855               161,934             180,789             
Local contracts and grants 18,211               -                     18,211               
Donation 2,255                 8,000                 10,255               
Interest income 25,166               -                     25,166               
Net assets released from restriction - 

Grant restrictions satisfied 399,558             (399,558)            -                     
Total revenue, support, and gains 1,665,733          (24,923)              1,640,810          

Expenses and Losses
Program services expense 1,529,653          -                     1,529,653          
Supporting services expense 606,824             -                     606,824             

Total expenses and losses 2,136,477          -                     2,136,477          

Change in Net Assets (470,744)            (24,923)              (495,667)            
Net Assets, Beginning of Year 1,786,523          32,572               1,819,095          
Net Assets, End of Year 1,315,779$        7,649$               1,323,428$        
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
5 

 

CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Functional Expenses 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
                    

Program Services
Educational 
Programs

Management and 
General Total

Salaries and Wages 689,406$               334,713$               1,024,119$            
Pension expense 71,602                  34,764                  106,366                 
Other employee benefits 87,699                  42,579                  130,278                 
Payroll taxes 26,473                  12,853                  39,326                  
Fees for services:

Management -                       68,908                  68,908                  
Legal -                       8,049                    8,049                    
Audit -                       9,950                    9,950                    
Other fees - Professional consulting 38,944                  26,132                  65,076                  
Other fees - District oversight -                       11,647                  11,647                  
Other fees - Banking and service charges -                       21,594                  21,594                  

Advertising and promotion -                       3,144                    3,144                    
Office expenses 57,977                  -                       57,977                  
Information technology 12,707                  -                       12,707                  
Occupancy 177,917                 -                       177,917                 
Travel 7,503                    -                       7,503                    
Conferences, conventions, and meetings 18,248                  -                       18,248                  
Depreciation 27,309                  -                       27,309                  
Insurance -                       16,937                  16,937                  
Other expenses:

Books and supplies 288,810                 -                       288,810                 
Equipment rental and repair 12,223                  -                       12,223                  
Student events 4,835                    -                       4,835                    
Dues and memberships -                       13,246                  13,246                  
Miscellaneous 8,000                    2,308                    10,308                  

Total expenses by function 1,529,653$            606,824$               2,136,477$            

Supporting Services
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from federal, state, and local contracts and grants 881,270$        
Receipts from property taxes 762,091          
Other reciepts 35,421            
Payments for salaries and benefits (1,265,158)      
Payments to vendors (780,551)         

Net Cash Used For Operating Activities (366,927)         

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment (113,204)         

Net Cash From Investing Activities (113,204)         

Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (480,131)         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 1,629,161        

Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 1,149,030$      

Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Net Cash 
Used For Operating Activities

Change in net assets (495,667)$       
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash:

Depreciation and amortization 27,309            
Realized and unrealized (gain) loss on operating investments
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
(Increase) Decrease in assets

Accounts receivable 37,972            
Prepaid expenses 52,496            
Security deposits (6,073)            

Increase (Decrease) in liabilities
Accounts payable (17,895)           
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 34,931            

Net Cash Used For Operating Activities (366,927)$       
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

A. Principal Activity and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 
 
Organization 
 
City Heights Preparatory Charter School (the School) is a non-profit public benefit School established in 2010. 
Under the Charter Schools Act of 1992, a charter school is authorized to elect to operate as, or be operated by, a 
nonprofit public benefit School. The School was authorized by San Diego Unified School District (the District). 
The School is organized and operated exclusively for educational and charitable purposes pursuant to and within 
the meaning of section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. 
 
The School’s mission is to provide an excellence neighborhood based and college preparatory education for 
middle and high school students in City Heights. It is the School’s vision to see City Heights Preparatory Charter 
School graduates succeed in the college or university of their choice and poised to become community leaders 
who work for positive change in City Heights and beyond. 
 
Basis of Accounting 
 
The financial statements were prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America as applicable to not-for-profit organizations. The School uses the accrual basis of accounting, 
under which revenues are recognized when they are earned and expenditures are recognized in the accounting 
period in which the liability is incurred. 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 
 
The School considers all cash and highly liquid financial instruments with original maturities of three months or 
less, which are neither held for nor restricted by donors for long-term purposes, to be cash and cash equivalents. 
 
Accounts Receivable 
 
Accounts receivable consist primarily of noninterest-bearing amounts due to the School for federal, state, and 
local grants and contracts receivable. The amounts in accounts receivable are considered fully collectable and as 
such there has not been an allowance for uncollectable accounts or discount established for the School. 
 

Inventory 
 
Inventories are recorded using the purchases method in that the cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time 
individual inventory items are purchased. Inventories are valued using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method and 
consist of expendable supplies held for consumption.  
 
Property and Equipment 
 
The School records property and equipment additions over $5,000 at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date 
of donation. Depreciation and amortization are computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful 
lives of the assets ranging from 3 to 30 years, or in the case of capitalized leased assets or leasehold improvements, 
the lesser of the useful life of the asset or the lease term. When assets are sold or otherwise disposed of, the cost 
and related depreciation or amortization are removed from the accounts, and any resulting gain or loss is included 
in the statement of activities. Costs of maintenance and repairs that do not improve or extend the useful lives of 
the respective assets are expensed in the current period.  
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 
The School reviews the carrying values of property and equipment for impairment whenever events or 
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated future cash 
flows expected to result from its use and eventual disposition. When considered impaired an impairment loss is 
recognized to the extent carrying value exceeds the fair value of the asset. There were no indicators of asset 
impairment during the year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
Investments 
 
The School records investment purchases at cost, or if donated, at fair value on the date of donation. Thereafter, 
investments are reported at their fair values on the statement of financial position. Net investment return/(loss) is 
reported in the statement of activities and consists of interest and dividend income, realized and unrealized capital 
gains and losses, less external and direct internal investment expenses. 
 
Net Assets 
 
Net assets, revenues, gains and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of donor or grantor-imposed 
restrictions. Accordingly, net assets and changes therein are classified and reported as follows: 
 

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions – Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject to 
donor (or certain grantor) restrictions.  
 
Net Assets With Donor Restrictions – Net assets subject to donor (or certain grantor) imposed restrictions. 
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of 
time or other events specified by the donor. Other donor-imposed restrictions are perpetual in nature, where 
the donor stipulates that resources be maintained in perpetuity. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when 
a restriction expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the 
resource was restricted has been fulfilled, or both. 
 

Revenue and Revenue Recognition 
 
The School recognizes revenue from sales when the products are transferred and services are provided. The 
school records special events revenue equal to the cost of direct benefits to donors, and contribution revenue for 
the difference. Contributions are recognized when cash, securities or other assets, an unconditional promise to 
give, or notification of a beneficial interest is received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a 
measurable performance or other barrier, and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which 
they depend have been substantially met. The schools federal, state, and local contracts and grants are conditioned 
upon certain performance requirements and the incurrence of allowable qualifying expense. Consequently, at 
June 30, 2020 there were no conditional contributions, federal, state and local contracts recognized in the 
accompanying financial statements.  
 
Donated Services and In-Kind Contributions 
 
Volunteers contribute significant amounts of time to program services, administration, and fundraising and 
developing activities; however, the financial statements do not reflect the value of these contributed services 
because they do not meet recognition criteria prescribed by generally accepted accounting principles.  
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 
Advertising 
 
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred and approximated $3,144 during the year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
Functional Allocation of Expenses 
 
The costs of program and supporting services activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the 
statement of activities. The statement of functional expenses presents the natural classification detail of expenses 
by function. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the program and supporting services benefited. 
 
Income Taxes 
 
The School is a 509(a)(1) publicly supported non-profit organization that is exempt from income taxes under 
Sections 501(a) and 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. The School is also exempt from California franchise 
or income tax under Section 23701d of the California Revenue and Taxation Code. The School may be subject 
to tax on income which is not related to its exempt purpose. For the year ended June 30, 2020, no such unrelated 
business income was reported and, therefore, no provision for income taxes has been made. 
 
The School follows provisions of uncertain tax positions as addressed in ASC 958. The School recognizes 
accrued interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax positions as part of the income tax provision, when 
applicable. There are no amounts accrued in the financial statements related to uncertain tax positions for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
The School files informational and income tax returns in the United States and in the state of California. The 
federal income tax and informational returns are subject to examination by the Internal Revenue Service for three 
years after the returns are filed. State and local jurisdictions have statutes of limitation that generally range from 
three to five years. 
 
Estimates 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires the 
School to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual 
results could differ from those estimates, and those differences could be material. 
 
Financial Instruments and Credit Risk 
 
The School manages deposit concentration risk by placing cash, money market accounts, and certificates of 
deposit with financial institutions believed by the School to be creditworthy. At times, amounts on deposit may 
exceed insured limits or include uninsured investments in money market mutual funds. To date, the School has 
not experienced losses in any of these accounts. Credit risk associated with contributions receivable is considered 
to be limited due to high historical collection rates and because substantial portions of the outstanding amounts 
are due from government agencies. Investments are made by diversified investment managers whose 
performance is monitored by the board of directors for the School. Although fair values of investments are subject 
to fluctuation on a year-to-year basis, the School believes that the investment policies and guidelines are prudent 
for the long-term welfare of the School. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 
LCFF Revenues and Payments in Lieu of Property Taxes 
 
The School’s primary funding source is a combination of local property taxes and state revenues. The California 
Department of Education computes the local control funding formula (LCFF) on statewide charter school rates 
multiplied by the schools’ average daily attendance (ADA) as reported at the second principal apportionment 
period (P2). The result is then reduced by property tax revenues transferred from the District to the school, which 
is funding in lieu of property taxes, and education protection account funds paid by the state under proposition 
30. The remaining balance is paid from the state general fund, in the form of LCFF State Aid. LCFF funding 
sources, inclusive of state and local sources, made up 73.32% of the School’s revenue.  
 
The School is not at risk of losing these funding sources, as long as the schools maintain a steady level of ADA, 
as these funding sources are mandated by the California State Constitution to fund schools. 
 
New Accounting Guidance 
 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued the following Accounting Standards Updates 
(ASU) that became effective during the 2019-20 fiscal year: 
 
1. FASB ASU 2014-09 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) 
2. FASB ASU 2015-14 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Deferral of the Effective Date 
3. FASB ASU 2016-01 Financial Instruments – Overall (Subtopic 825-10): Recognition and Measurement of 

Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. 
4. FASB ASU 2016-04 Liabilities – Extinguishments of Liabilities (Subtopic 405-20): Recognition of Breakage 

for Certain Prepaid Stored-Value Products (a consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force). 
5. FASB ASU 2016-08 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent 

Considerations (Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net). 
6. FASB ASU 2016-10 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance 

Obligations and Licensing. 
7. FASB ASU 2016-12 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements 

and Practical Expedients. 
8. FASB ASU 2016-15 Statement of cash flows (Topic 230) Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash 

Payments (a consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force). 
9. FASB ASU 2016-16 Income Taxes (Topic 740): Intra-Entity Transfers of Assets Other than Inventory 
10. FASB ASU 2016-20 Technical Corrections and Improvements to Topic 606, Revenue from Contracts with 

Customers. 
11. FASB ASU 2017-01 Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business 
12. FASB ASU 2017-05 Other Income – Gains and Losses from the Derecognition of Nonfinancial Assets 

(Subtopic 610-20): Clarifying the Scope of Asset Derecognition Guidance and Accounting for Partial Sales 
of Nonfinancial Assets. 

13. FASB ASU 2017-07 Compensation – Retirement Benefits (Topic 715): Improving Presentation of Net 
Periodic Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost. 

14. FASB ASU 2018-03 Technical Corrections and Improvements to Financial Instruments – Overall (Subtopic 
825-10): Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities. 

15. FASB ASU 2018-09 Codification Improvements 
16. FASB ASU 2020-04 Reference Rate Reform (Topic 848) Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform 

on Financial Reporting. 
17. FASB ASU 2020-05 Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) and Leases (Topic 842): Effective 

Dates for Certain Entities.  
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

These updates were issued to provide clarification and simplification in accounting for certain transactions. In 
addition, they provide for additional note disclosures to create transparency involving these transactions. The 
updates effective during the 2019-20 fiscal year did not impact the financial accounting or presentation for the 
School. 
 
Subsequent Events 
 
In preparing these financial statements, the School has evaluated events and transactions for potential recognition 
or disclosure through March 24, 2021, the date the financial statements were available to be issued. 
 

B. Liquidity and Availability 
 
Financial assets available for general expenditure, that is, without donor or other restrictions limiting their use, 
within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following: 

 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,149,030$              
Accounts receivable 152,027                   

1,301,057$              

 
C. Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures 

 
The School reports certain assets and liabilities at fair value in the financial statements. Fair value is the price 
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal, or 
most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that 
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. Inputs used to determine fair value 
refer broadly to the assumptions that market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability, including 
assumptions about risk. Inputs may be observable or unobservable. Observable inputs are inputs that reflect the 
assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on market data obtained from 
sources independent of the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the reporting entity’s own 
assumptions about the assumptions market participants would use in pricing the asset or liability based on the 
best information available. A three-tier hierarchy categorizes the inputs as follows: 
 
 Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that we can access 

at the measurement date. 
  
 Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or 

liability, either directly or indirectly. These include quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities 
in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not 
active, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and market-
corroborated inputs. 

 
 Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. In these situations, the School develops inputs using 

the best information available in the circumstances 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

A significant portion of the School’s investment assets are classified within Level 1 because they comprise open 
end mutual funds with readily determinable fair values based on daily redemption values. The School invests in 
CDs traded in the financial markets and additionally has funds at the Los Angeles County Treasury which invests 
funds in various markets such as CDs, money market, and U.S. government obligations. Those CDs and U.S. 
government obligations are valued by the custodians of the securities using pricing models based on credit 
quality, time to maturity, stated interest rates, and market rate assumptions and are classified within Level 2.  
 
The following table presents assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 30, 2020: 
 

Quoted Prices in 
Active Markets 

for Identical 
Assets

Significant Other 
Observable Inputs

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs
Assets Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

External investment pool measured 
at fair value

Cash in county treasury 1,047,805$          -$                   1,047,805$          -$                   
1,047,805$          -$                   1,047,805$          -$                   

 
D. Cash and Investments 

 
Cash and investments at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following: 

 
Cash in county treasury 1,047,805$              
Cash in bank accounts 101,225                   

Total cash and cash equivalents 1,149,030$              

 
Cash in County Treasury 
 
The School is a voluntary participant and therefore maintains a portion of its cash in the San Diego County 
Treasury as part of the common investment pool ($1,047,805 as of June 30, 2020). The County Treasury is 
restricted by Government Code §53635 pursuant to §53601 to invest in time deposits, U.S. Government 
Securities, state registered warrants, notes or bonds, State Treasurer’s investment pool, banker’s acceptances, 
commercial paper, negotiable certificates of deposit, and repurchase or reverse agreements.  
 
The fair value of the School’s investment in this pool is reported in the accompanying financial statements at 
amounts based upon the School’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by the County Treasury for the entire 
County Treasury portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The balance available for 
withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained by the County Treasury, which are recorded on an 
amortized cost basis. Cash may be added or withdrawn from the investment pool without limitation. 
 
Cash in Bank 
 
The remainder of the School’s cash ($101,225 as of June 30, 2020) is held in financial institutions which are 
either insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance School (FDIC) up to a limit of $250,000 per depositor or certain 
non-interest-bearing accounts that are fully insured by the FDIC. As of June 30, 2020, the School held no cash 
in excess of the FDIC insured amounts. The School reduces its exposure to risk by maintaining such deposits 
with high quality financial institutions. The School has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believe 
it is not exposed to any significant credit risk.  
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 
E. Accounts Receivable 

 
As of June 30, 2020, accounts receivable consisted of the following: 
 

Federal Government
Special Education 15,837$                   
Other Federal Programs 1,440                      

State Government
Education Protection Account 5,688                      
State Aid 17,649                    
Lottery Funding 5,345                      
SB740 19,077                    
Special Education 7,133                      
Other State Programs 2,699                      

Local Government
Property tax payments 67,726                    

Other Local Sources
Interest 4,333                      
Other local sources 5,100                      

Total Accounts Receivable 152,027$                 

 
F. Prepaid Expenses 

 
As of June 30, 2020, prepaid expenses consisted of the following: 

Insurance 10,775$                   
Prepaid rent 11,684                    
Service contracts 4,994                      
Total Prepaid Expenses 27,453$                   

 
G. Property and Equipment 

 
Property and equipment for City Heights Preparatory Charter School consisted of the following at June 30, 
2020: 

 
 Beginning 
Balance  Additions  Deletions 

 Ending 
Balance 

Non-Depreciable Capital Assets
Work in Progress -$           10,656$       -$           10,656$       
Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets -             10,656        -             10,656        

Depreciable Capital Assets
Leasehold Improvements 27,193$       102,548$     27,193$       102,548$     
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 27,193        102,548       27,193        102,548       

Total Capital Assets 27,193        113,204       27,193        113,204       
Less Accumulated Depreciation (9,712)         (27,309)       (27,193)       (9,828)         
Capital Assets, Net 17,481$       85,895$       -$           103,376$     
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

H. Net Assets With Restrictions 
 
Net assets with donor restrictions are restricted for the following purposes or periods at June 30, 2020: 
 

Restricted for state programs
Low performing student block grant 1,378$           
Classified school employee grant 1,860             

3,238             
Restricted for local programs

Field trip fund 3,511             
Scholarship fund 900                

4,411             

Total net assets with donor restrictions 7,649$           

 
I. Employee Retirement System 

 
Qualified employees are covered under a multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan by agencies of the State 
of California. Certificated employees are members of the California State Teachers’ Retirement System 
(CalSTRS). The risks of participating in this multi-employer plan are different from single-employer plans in the 
following aspects: 
 
a. Assets contributed to the multi-employer plan by one employer may be used to provide benefits to employees 

of the other participating employers. 
 

b. If a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded obligations of the plan may be borne 
by the remaining participating employers. 

 
c. If the Schools choose to stop participating in some of its multi-employer plans, the Schools may be required 

to pay those plans an amount based on the underfunded status of the plan, referred to as a withdrawal liability. 
 

The School’s participation in this plan for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, is outlined in the table below. 
The “EIN/Pension Plan Number” column provides the Employee Identification Number (EIN) and the three-
digit plan number, if applicable. Unless otherwise noted, the most recent Pension Protection Act (PPA) zone 
status available in 2020, 2019 and 2018 is for the plan’s year-end at June 30, 2019, 2018and 2017, respectively. 
The zone status is based on information that the School received from the plan and is certified by the plan's 
actuary. Among other factors, plans in the red zone are generally less than 65% funded, plans in the yellow zone 
are less than 80% funded, and plans in the green zone are at least 80% funded. The “FIP/RP Status 
Pending/Implemented” column indicates plans for which a financial improvement plan (FIP) or a rehabilitation 
plan (RP) is either pending or has been implemented.  

 
Period to Period Comparability: 
 
City Heights Preparatory Charter School decreased in CalSTRS contributions from 2018 to 2019 by 7.72% 
followed by an increase in 2020 of 42.72%. The increases 2020 were in large due to rising contribution rates. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

Pension Fund 2020 2019 2018
CalSTRS 37162 Yellow Yellow Yellow No

Pension Fund 2020 2019 2018
CalSTRS 106,365$      74,525$       80,760$       9 No

Total 106,365$      74,525$       80,760$       9

EIN/
Pension Plan 

Number

Pension Protection Act 
Zone Status

Year Ended June 30,
FIP/RP Status 

Pending/
Implemented

Contributions Number of 
Employees

Surcharge 
Imposed

 
CalSTRS: 
 
The School contributes to the California State Teachers’ Retirement System (CalSTRS), a cost-sharing multiple 
employer public employee retirement system defined benefit pension plan administered by CalSTRS. Required 
contribution rates are set by the California Legislature and detailed in Teachers’ Retirement Law. Contribution 
rates are expressed as a level of percentage of payroll using the entry age normal actuarial cost method. CalSTRS 
also uses the level of percentage of payroll method to calculate the amortization of any unfunded liability. Copies 
of the STRS annual report may be obtained from the STRS, 7667 Folsom Boulevard, Sacramento, California 
95826. 
 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, active plan members were required to contribute between 10.205% and 
10.25% of their salary, depending on their hire date. The employer contribution rate was 17.10% of annual 
payroll. CalSTRS issues a separate comprehensive annual financial report that includes financial statements and 
required supplementary information. The School made contributions as noted above. For the year ended June 
30, 2020 the State contributed $63,682 (10.238% of certificated salaries) on behalf of the School. 
 

J. Upcoming Changes in Accounting Pronouncements 
 
The Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) has issued the following Accounting Standards Updates 
(ASU) that become effective over the next few fiscal years: 
 
1. FASB ASU 2016-02 Leases (Topic 842) – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 
2. FASB ASU 2016-13 Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on 

Financial Instruments – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 
3. FASB ASU 2017-04 Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Topic350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill 

Impairment – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 
4. FASB ASU 2017-08 Receivables – Nonrefundable Fees and Other Costs (Subtopic 310-20): Premium 

Amortization on Purchased Callable Debt Securities – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 
5. FASB ASU 2017-11 Earnings Per Share (Topic 260); Distinguishing Liabilities from Equity (Topic 480); 

Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): (Part I) Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Down 
Round Features, (Part II) Replacement of the Indefinite Deferral for Mandatorily Redeemable Financial 
Instruments of Certain Nonpublic Entities and Certain Mandatorily Redeemable Noncontrolling Interests 
with a Scope exception. – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

6. FASB ASU 2017-12 Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Targeted Improvements to Accounting for 
Hedging Activities – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

7. FASB ASU 2018-01 Leases (Topic 842): Land Easement Practical Expedient for Transition to Topic 842 – 
Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

8. FASB ASU 2018-07 Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee 
Share Based Payment Accounting. – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 
9. FASB ASU 2018-08 Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance 

for Contributions Received and Contributions Made. – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 
10. FASB ASU 2018-10 Codification Improvements to Topic 842, Leases – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 

30, 2022 
11. FASB ASU 2018-11 Leases (Topic 842): Targeted Improvements – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

2022 
12. FASB ASU 2018-12 Financial Service – Insurance (Topic 944): Targeted Improvements to the Accounting 

for Long-Duration Contracts – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2025 
13. FASB ASU 2018-13 Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework – Changes to the 

Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 
14. FASB ASU 2018-14 Compensation – Retirement Benefits – Defined Benefit Plans – General (Subtopic 715-

20): Disclosure Framework – Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Defined Benefit Plans – Effective 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2023 

15. FASB ASU 2018-15 Intangibles – Goodwill and Other – Internal Use Software (Subtopic 350-40): 
Customer’s Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a  Cloud Computing Arrangement That is a 
Service Contract (a consensus of the FASB Emerging Issues Task Force) – Effective Fiscal Year Ending 
June 30, 2022 

16. FASB ASU 2018-16 Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815): Inclusion of the Secured Overnight Financing 
Rate (SOFR) Overnight Index Swap (OIS) Rate as a Benchmark Interest Rate for Hedge Accounting Purposes 
– Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

17. FASB ASU 2018-17 Consolidation (Topic 810): Targeted Improvements to Related Party Guidance for 
Variable Interest Entities – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

18. FASB ASU 2018-18 Collaborative Arrangements (Topic 808): Clarifying the Interaction between Topic 808 
and Topic 606 – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

19. FASB ASU 2019-20 Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses – 
Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 

20. FASB ASU 2018-20 Leases (Topic 842): Narrow Scope Improvements for Lessors – Effective Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2022 

21. FASB ASU 2019-01 Leases (Topic 842): Codification Improvements – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 
30, 2022. 

22. FASB ASU 2019-02  Entertainment – Films – Other Assets – Film Costs (Subtopic 926-20) and 
Entertainment – Broadcasters – Intangibles – Goodwill and Other (Subtopic 920-350): Improvements to 
Accounting for Costs of Films and License Agreements for Program Materials (a consensus of the Emerging 
Issues Task Force – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2022 

23. FASB ASU 2019-03 Not-For-Profit Entities (Topic 958): Updating the Definition of Collections – Effective 
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

24. FASB ASU 2019-04 Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses, Topic 
815, Derivatives and Hedging, and Topic 825, Financial Instruments – Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 
30, 2021 

25. FASB ASU 2019-05 Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326): Targeted Transition Relief – 
Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

26. FASB ASU 2019-08 Compensation – Stock Compensation (Topic 718) and Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers (Topic 606): Codification Improvements – Share Based Consideration Payable to a Customer – 
Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2021 

27. FASB ASU 2019-09 Financial Services – Insurance (Topic 944): Effective Date – Effective Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2025 

28. FASB ASU 2019-10 Financial Instruments – Credit Losses (Topic 326), Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 
815), and Leases (Topic 842): Effective Dates - Effective Fiscal Years Ending June 30, 2022 and June 30, 
2024 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued) 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
              

 
29. FASB ASU 2019-11 Codification Improvements to Topic 326, Financial Instruments – Credit Losses – 

Effective Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 
30. FASB ASU 2019-12 Income Taxes (Topic 740): Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes – Effective 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2024 
31. FASB ASU 2020-01  Investments – Equity Securities (Topic 321), Investments – Equity Method and Joint 

Ventures (Topic 323), and Derivatives and Hedging (Topic 815) – Clarifying the Interactions between Topic 
321, Topic 323, and Topic 815 (a consensus of the Emerging Issues Task Force). – Effective Fiscal Year 
Ending June 30, 2022 

32. FASB ASU 2020-03 Codification Improvements to Financial Instruments – Effective Fiscal Years Ending 
June 30, 2021 and June 30, 2024 

 
These updates were issued to provide clarification and simplification in accounting for certain transactions. In 
addition, they provide for additional note disclosures to create transparency involving these transactions. The 
updates effective during the future fiscal years are not expected to impact the financial accounting or presentation 
for the School. 
 

K. COVID-19 Impact and Considerations 
 
In March 2020 the World Health Organization declared the outbreak of the novel coronavirus COVID-19 a global 
pandemic. The nature of the pandemic resulted in a mandatory school property closure affecting the City Heights 
Preparatory Charter School from March 16, 2020 and continuing into the Fall of 2020-21 school year. California 
Governor Gavin Newsom issued a state-wide executive order mandating that schools remain closed until the 
county in which the school is located is off the COVID-19 watch list for fourteen consecutive days. The 2020-
21 fiscal year opened in a fully distance learning model, until such time as campuses can be re-opened. At this 
point in time the City Heights Preparatory Charter School campuses remain closed until San Diego County meets 
the benchmark requirements.  
 
In addition to school closures, new regulations and safety measures were required to be put in place by all schools 
in California as part of a re-opening plan. The City Heights Preparatory Charter School has established a re-
opening plan that they believe will provide a safe environment for the students and teachers.  
 
The federal and state government have established temporary funding to assist in the additional costs that resulted 
from the COVID-19 pandemic. All California school districts are eligible for these funds. Due to timing of the 
grant disbursements, the City Heights Preparatory Charter School did not expend any of the funds in the 2019-
20 fiscal year. The funds remain available for the 2020-21 fiscal year. Additionally, for the 2019-20 fiscal year, 
the state placed all charter schools in a hold harmless state shifting attendance reporting periods to a point prior 
to the pandemic to prevent sudden losses of attendance from impacting funding for the 2019-20 fiscal year. 
Finally, funding for the 2020-21 fiscal year is frozen at amounts provided in 2019-20 for all California charter 
schools, with adjustments based on the Governor’s budget. The School has established their 2020-21 budget with 
this in consideration. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Organization Structure 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

City Heights Preparatory Charter School (Charter #1312) was established in 2011. The authorizing entity is San 
Diego Unified School District. 
 

Name Office Term and Term Expiration

Michael Watts Chariman Two Year Term
Expires March 2020

Edrienne Brandon Treasurer Two Year Term
Expires September 2020

Johanna Afshani Director Two Year Term
Expires September 2020

Lisbeth Johnson Director Two Year Term
Expires September 2020

Scott Himelstein Director Two Year Term
Expires March 2020

Regina McDuffie Director Two Year Term
Expires December 2019

ADMINISTRATION

Dr. Elias Vargas
Director

Merdin Mohammed
Assistant Director

GOVERNING BOARD
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 

Original Revised Original Revised
5D838325 N/A DA6E8E9C N/A

Classroom Based Attendance
Grades 4-6 17.57                  N/A 17.57                N/A
Grades 7-8 50.58                  N/A 50.58                N/A
Grades 9-12 45.43                  N/A 45.43                N/A
Total Classroom Based Attendance 113.58                N/A 113.58              N/A

Total ADA 113.58                N/A 113.58              N/A

Second Period Report Annual Report

 
 
N/A – There were no audit findings which resulted in revisions to the second period or annual reports of attendance. 
 
On March 17, 2020 Governor Newsom signed Senate Bill (SB) 117 which mitigated the effect of lost attendance due 
to COVID19 that occurred after February 29, 2020. For the purpose of preventing losses of attendance-based funding 
as a result of reductions in average daily attendance (ADA) due to COVID19, this legislation provided that the ADA 
used for both the second period (P2) and the Annual period apportionment include all full school months from July 
1, 2019 to February 29, 2020 for all local education agencies (LEAs). 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 

Schedule of Instructional Time 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

                     

Grade Level
Minutes 

Requirement

2019-20 
Actual 

Minutes

2019-20
COVID-19 

Closure 
Minutes

2019-20
Total 

Instructional 
Minutes

2019-20
Actual 

School Days

2019-20
COVID-19 

Closure 
Days

2019-20
Total 

School Days Status

6th Grade 54000 40335 17655 57990 125 55 180 Complied

7th Grade 54000 40335 17655 57990 125 55 180 Complied

8th Grade 54000 40335 17655 57990 125 55 180 Complied

9th Grade 64800 40335 17655 57990 125 55 180 Complied

10th Grade 64800 40335 17655 57990 125 55 180 Complied

11th Grade 64800 40335 17655 57990 125 55 180 Complied

12th Grade 64800 40335 17655 57990 125 55 180 Complied

 
 

Due to COVID-19 the District closed campus on March 16, 2020 through the end of the school year. Distance learning was provided to students for school days 
during the closure. This schedule has been reflected based on the original approved calendar and instructional time planned by the District for the 2019-20 fiscal 
year. 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 

Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis 
Year Ended June 30, 2020 

               

Budget 
2021 2020 2019 2018

Revenues 1,845,176$   1,640,810$   1,768,809$   1,892,014$   
Expenses 1,868,407     2,136,477     1,796,735     1,583,997     
Change in Net Assets (23,231)        (495,667)      (27,926)        308,017       

Ending Net Assets 1,300,197$   1,323,428$   1,819,095$   1,847,021$   

Unrestricted Net Assets 1,300,197$   1,323,428$   1,786,523$   1,826,366$   

Unrestricted net assets as a
   percentage of total expenses 69.59% 61.94% 99.43% 115.30%

Total Long Term Debt -$            -$            -$            -$            

ADA at P2 128             114             119             141             

 
The School’s ending net assets has decreased by $523,593 (28.35%) over the past two fiscal years. The decrease 
is in large due to a decrease in ADA. The average daily attendance (ADA) reported by the School has increased 
by 27 (19.14%) over the past two years. The 2020-21 fiscal year budget projects a decrease in net assets of 
$23,231 (1.76%) and an increase in ADA of 14 (12.28%). 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Reconciliation of Unaudited Financial Report Alternative Form with Audited financial statements 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

June 30, 2020 annual financial alternative form net assets: 1,323,426$       

Adjustments and reclassifications:
Rounding 2                     
Total adjustments and reclassifications 2                     

June 30, 2020 audited financial statements net assets: 1,323,428$       
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Notes to Supplementary Information 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

A. Purpose of Schedules 
 
Organization Structure 
 
This schedule provides information about the schools’ charter numbers, district of authorization, members of 
the governing board, and members of administration. 
 
Schedule of Average Daily Attendance 
Average daily attendance (ADA) is a measure of the number of pupils attending classes of the schools. The 
purpose of attendance accounting from a fiscal standpoint is to provide the basis on which apportionments of 
state funds are made to charter schools. This schedule provides information regarding the attendance of students 
at various grade levels and in different programs. 
 
Schedule of Instructional Time 
 
This schedule presents information on the amount of instructional time offered by the School and whether they 
complied with the provisions of Education Code Section 47612.5.  
 
Schedule of Financial Trends and Analysis 
 
Budget information for 2021 is presented for analysis purposes only and is based on estimates of the 2020-21 
fiscal year. The information has not been subject to audit. 
 
This schedule discloses the School’s financial trends by displaying past years’ data along with current year 
budget information. These financial trend disclosures are used to evaluate the School’s ability to continue as a 
going concern for a reasonable period of time. 
 
Reconciliation of Unaudited Financial Report Alternative Form with Audited financial statements 
 
This schedule provides the information necessary to reconcile the fund balance as reported on the Unaudited 
Financial Report Alternative Forms prepared by the schools to the net assets reported in the audited financial 
statements. 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on 
Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of financial statements 

Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
 
To the Board of Education 
City Heights Preparatory Charter School 
San Diego, California 
 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of City 
Heights Preparatory Charter School (School), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related Notes to the 
Financial Statements, which collectively comprise City Heights Preparatory Charter School’s basic financial 
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 24, 2021. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City Heights Preparatory Charter 
School’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing the audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for 
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City Heights Preparatory Charter School’s internal 
control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City Heights Preparatory Charter School’s 
internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City Heights Preparatory Charter School’s financial 
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on 
the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective 
of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.  
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Purpose of this Report 
 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the School’s internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards 
in considering the School’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any 
other purpose. 

 

 

El Cajon, California 
March 24, 2021 
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Independent Auditor’s Report on State Compliance 
 
To the Board of Education 
City Heights Preparatory Charter School 
San Diego, California 
 
Report on State Compliance 
 
We have audited the City Heights Preparatory Charter School’s compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 
Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810, that could have a direct 
and material effect on each of the School’s state programs identified below for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. 

Management’s Responsibility for State Compliance 
 
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants 
applicable to its state programs. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each applicable program as identified in the State’s 
Audit Guide 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance, prescribed 
in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with 
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits 
contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the comptroller General of the United States; and the State’s 
audit guide 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, 
prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, Section 19810. Those standards and audit guide require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on the state programs noted below. An 
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about each school’s compliance with those requirements and 
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the School’s compliance with 
those requirements. 
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In connection with the audit referred to above, we selected and tested transactions and records to determine the 
School’s compliance with state laws and regulations applicable to the following items: 

Description
Procedures 
Performed

Local Education Agencies Other Than Charter Schools
A.  Attendance…............................................................................................  N/A
B.  Teacher Certification and Misassignments…...............................................  N/A
C.  Kindergarten Continuance…....................................................................... N/A
D.  Independent Study….................................................................................. N/A
E.  Continuation Education…............................................................................ N/A
F.  Instructional Time…...................................................................................  N/A
G.  Instructional Materials…............................................................................  N/A
H.  Ratio of Administrative Employees to Teachers….......................................  N/A
I.  Classroom Teacher Salaries….....................................................................  N/A
J.  Early Retirement Incentive…....................................................................... N/A
K.  Gann Limit Calculation…...........................................................................  N/A
L.  School Accountability Report Card…..........................................................  N/A
M.  Juvenile Court Schools…...........................................................................  N/A
N.  Middle or Early College High Schools…......................................................  N/A
O.  K-3 Grade Span Adjustment…...................................................................  N/A
P.  Transportation Maintenance of Effort…......................................................  N/A
Q.  Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction…............................... N/A
R.  Comprehensive School Safety Plan….......................................................... N/A
S.  District of Choice….................................................................................... N/A

 
School Districts, County Offices of Education, and Charter Schools  

T.  California Clean Energy Jobs Act…............................................................  N/A
U.  After/Before School Education and Safety Program….................................  N/A
V.  Proper Expenditure of Education Protection Account Funds…...................... Yes
W.  Unduplicated Local Control Funding Formula Pupil Counts….......................  Yes
X.  Local Control and Accountability Plan….....................................................  Yes
Y.  Independent Study - Course Based….......................................................... N/A

 
Charter Schools  

AA.  Attendance….........................................................................................  Yes
BB.  Mode of Instruction….............................................................................. Yes
CC.  Nonclassroom Based Instruction/Independent Study…............................... N/A
DD.  Determination of Funding for Nonclassroom Based Instruction…...............  N/A
EE.  Annual Instructional Minutes - Classroom Based…....................................  Yes
FF.  Charter School Facility Grant Program…...................................................  Yes

  
The term N/A is used above to mean either the School did not offer the program during the current fiscal year or the 
program applies to a different type of local education agency. 
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Opinion on State Compliance 
 
In our opinion, City Heights Preparatory Charter School complied, in all material respects, with the compliance 
requirements referred to above that are applicable to the statutory requirements listed in the schedule above for the 
year ended June 30, 2020. 
 
Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing. 
This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 
Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting, prescribed in Title 5, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 19810. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
El Cajon, California 
March 24, 2021 
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Auditor’s Results, Findings & Recommendations 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Auditor’s Results 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Yes X No

Yes X No

Yes X No

STATE AWARDS

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
  in accordance with 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits
  of California K-12 Local Education Agencies? Yes X No

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for state programs:

  not considered material weakness(es)?

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
One or more material weakness(es) identified?
One or more significant deficiencies identified that are

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Unmodified
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

Findings represent significant deficiencies, material weaknesses, and/or instances of noncompliance related to 
the financial statements that are required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, or 
the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State Compliance Reporting. 
Finding codes as identified in the 2019-20 Guide for Annual Audits of K-12 Local Education Agencies and State 
Compliance Reporting are as follows: 
 

Five Digit Code AB 3627 Finding Type
10000 Attendance
20000 Inventory of Equipment
30000 Internal Control
40000 State Compliance
42000 Charter School Facilities
43000 Apprenticeship: Related and Supplemental Instruction
50000 Federal Compliance
60000 Miscellaneous
61000 Classroom Teacher Salaries
62000 Local Control Accountability Plan
70000 Instructional Materials
71000 Teacher Misassignments
72000 School Accountability Report Card  

 
A. Financial Statement Findings 

 
None 
 

B. State Award Findings 
 
None 
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CITY HEIGHTS PREPARATORY CHARTER SCHOOL 
Schedule of Prior Year Audit Findings 

Year Ended June 30, 2020 
               

 

Finding/Recommendation Status Explanation if Not Implemented

There were no findings in the prior
year audit. N/A N/A  
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COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP) 
City Heights Preparatory Charter School 

 
This CPP is designed to control exposures to the SARS-CoV-2 virus that may occur in our workplace. 

Date: March 2, 2021 

 

Authority and Responsibility 

 

Dr. Elias Vargas has overall authority and responsibility for implementing the provisions of this CPP in our workplace. In 

addition, all managers and supervisors are responsible for implementing and maintaining the CPP in their assigned work 

areas and for ensuring employees receive answers to questions about the program in a language they understand.  

 

All employees are responsible for using safe work practices, following all directives, policies and procedures, and 

assisting in maintaining a safe work environment. 

 

Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards 
 

We will implement the following in our workplace:  

 

• Conduct workplace-specific evaluations using the Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards form.  

• Evaluate employees’ potential workplace exposures to all persons at, or who may enter, our workplace.  

• Review applicable orders and general and industry-specific guidance from the State of California, Cal/OSHA, and the 

local health department related to COVID-19 hazards and prevention. 

• Evaluate existing COVID-19 prevention controls in our workplace and the need for different or additional controls.  

• Conduct periodic inspections using the Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections form as needed to identify unhealthy 

conditions, work practices, and work procedures related to COVID-19 and to ensure compliance with our COVID-19 

policies and procedures. 

• In regards to our periodic inspections of the workplace, we will also implement our procedures to correct the 
identified hazards. 

• The school will continue to ensure that updates are made to all stakeholders surrounding COVID-19 and that 
the best practices to combat the virus are utilized. 

• We plan to exclude any student, parent, caregiver, visitor, or staff showing symptoms of COVID-19 (reference 
CDC and CDPH guidelines for COVID-19 symptoms). 

• In the case that our school must be closed again, we plan to follow the public health guidelines, and we plan 
to be in coordination with local health officials. 

 

Employee Participation 

 

Employees and their authorized employees’ representatives are encouraged to participate in the identification and 

evaluation of COVID-19 hazards by:  
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• We will continue to offer Professional Development with updates on COVID-19, reviewing (and updating when 
necessary) our current guidelines and protocols surrounding the aforementioned practices as well as what it 
will mean to work together to hold one another accountable during this time. 

• Training for Face and Nose Covering 

i. Use a tissue to wipe the nose and cough and sneeze inside the tissue.  
 

ii. Not touch the face or face covering. 

• PPE Training- our plan to provide PPE Training is in accordance with CDC guidance in order to: 

i. Train and provide information to employees on proper use, removal, and washing of cloth face coverings.  
 

ii. Train employees regarding how face coverings are not recommended for anyone who has trouble breathing or is 
unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove the covering without assistance. We plan to make 
reasonable accommodations, such as a face shield with a cloth drape for those who are unable to wear face coverings 
for medical reasons. Per Cal/OSHA, considerations for face shields will include a cloth drape attached across the bottom 
and tucked into the shirt. 
 

iii. Train employees to understand that cloth face covering is meant to protect other people in case the wearer is 
unknowingly infected (many people carry COVID-19 but do not have symptoms). We plan to train them that cloth face 
coverings are not surgical masks, respirators, or personal protective equipment.  

• We also plan to provide staff training or utilize state-provided training on: 

i. Disinfecting frequency and tools and chemicals used in accordance with the Healthy Schools Act, CDPR guidance, and 
Cal/OSHA regulations. For staff who use hazardous chemicals for cleaning, we plan on providing the specialized training 
that is required. 
 

ii. Physical distancing of staff and students. 
 

iii. Symptom screening, which includes temperature checks. 
 

iv. Updates to the Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP). 
 

v. State and local health standards and recommendations, including, but not limited t o, the following: 
 

1. Proper use of protective equipment, including information on limitations of some face coverings that do not protect 
the wearer and are not PPE but can help protect people near the wearer. Face coverings do not replace the need for 
physical distancing and frequent handwashing. Cloth face coverings are most essential when physical distancing is not 
possible. We also plan to include training on removal and washing of cloth face coverings.  
 

2. Cough and sneeze etiquette. 
 

3. Keeping one’s hands away from one’s face. 
 

4. Frequent hand washing and proper technique. 
 

5. Confidentiality around health recording and reporting. 
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vi. Training for school health staff on clinical manifestations of COVID-19, pediatric presentations, and CDC transmission-
based precautions. 
 

vii. Training on trauma-informed practices and suicide prevention. 
 

 

Employee Screening 

 

We screen our employees by:  

 

• Passive Screening: We plan to instruct staff to self-screen before leaving for work (check temperature to 
ensure temperatures below 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit, check for symptoms outlined by public health 
officials). They will be instructed to stay home if they have symptoms consistent with COVID-19 or if they 
have had close contact with a person diagnosed with COVID-19. We will advise sick staff members not to 
return until they have met CDC criteria to discontinue home isolation. 

• Active Screening: We plan to engage in symptom screening as staff enter worksites, consistent with public 
health guidance, which includes visual wellness checks and temperature checks with no-touch thermometers 
(check temperature to ensure temperatures below 100.4 degrees Fahrenheit). All employees will be required 
to wear face coverings during this screening process. 

• Additionally, we plan to ask all staff about COVID-19 symptoms within the last 24 hours and whether anyone 
in their home has had COVID-19 symptoms or a positive test. 

• While screening employees, we will ensure that all thermometers will be properly cleaned and disinfected 
after each use. 

• Once temperatures have been checked, we plan to ensure that all staff will wash and/or sanitize their hands 
as they enter worksites. 

• We plan to exclude employees who are exhibiting symptoms from the workplace. Staff members who develop 
symptoms of illness will be sent to medical care and we plan to have emergency substitute plans in place.  

 

Correction of COVID-19 Hazards 
 

Unsafe or unhealthy work conditions, practices or procedures will be documented on the Appendix B: COVID-19 

Inspections form, and corrected in a timely manner based on the severity of the hazards, as follows:  

 

We plan to: 
 

i. Address the school’s role in documenting, reporting, tracking, and tracing infections in coordination with public health 
officials. 
 

ii. Notify staff and families immediately of any possible cases of COVID-19. We will review legal responsibilities and 
privacy rights for communicating about cases of the virus. 
 

iii. Provide guidance to parents, teachers, and staff reminding them of the importance of community physical distancing 
measures while a school is closed, including discouraging students or staff from gathering elsewhere.  
 

iv. Advise sick staff members and children not to return until they have met CDC criteria to discontinue home isolation.  
 

v. Inform those who have had close contact with a person diagnosed with COVID-19 to stay home and self-monitor for 
symptoms and to follow CDC guidance if symptoms develop. If a person does not have symptoms, we plan to follow 
appropriate CDC guidance for home isolation. 
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• PPE will be used to control employees exposure to COVID and we will have this equipment immediately
available.

• If there are any COVID cases at work, we will document who was infected, why they were at the workplace,
where the employee worked, the date and time COVID was last present in the workplace, and the date COVID
test was offered. The notice will be given in 1 business day to potentially exposed employees and
independent contractors. We will also provide the notification to the health department.

Controls of COVID-19 Hazards 

Physical Distancing 

Where possible, we ensure at least six feet of physical distancing at all times in our workplace by: 

• Plan to Limit the Number of Persons in Campus Spaces:

We plan to limit the number of people in all campus spaces to the number that can be reasonably accommodated while 
maintaining a minimum of 3 feet of distance between individuals (3 feet is the current minimum recommendation for 
physical distancing from the CDC, but we plan to pay attention to future modifications in public health 
recommendations). 

• Creating Smaller Student/Educator Cohorts & Minimizing Movement:

To the extent possible, and as recommended by the CDC, we plan to create smaller student/ educator cohorts in order 
to minimize the mixing of student groups throughout the day. Furthermore, we plan to minimize movement of students, 
educators, and staff as much as possible. 

• Alternative to Physical Distancing:

In a circumstance where sufficient physical distancing is difficult or impossible, we plan that all individuals, including 
staff and students, will wear face coverings that cover the mouth and nose consistent with public health guidance. To be 
clear, face coverings are not a replacement for physical distancing, but they will be used to mitigate virus spread when 
physical distancing is not feasible. 

• Student Physical Distancing:

i. Limit number of students physically reporting to school, if needed to maintain physical distancing.

1. Determine student and staff capacity of each school meeting at least 3-feet physical distancing objectives.

2. Consider various strategies outlined in the Instructional Program Models in the guidance document, such as 
early/late start times and blended learning models.

ii. Follow the CDC recommendations for virtual activities in lieu of field trips and intergroup events.

iii. Post signage and install barriers to direct traffic around campus.

iv. We will limit the number of people in outside spaces.

1. Provide supervision to ensure physical distancing.
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2. Although we did not offer this at the moment, when offered, we plan that physical education (PE) and
intramural/interscholastic athletics will be limited to activities that do not involve physical contact with other students
or equipment until advised otherwise by state/local public health officials.

v. Classrooms

1. Determine maximum capacity for students of each classroom while meeting 3-feet physical distancing objectives.

2. In accordance with CDC and CDPH guidance, we plan to ensure desks are a minimum of 3 feet apart and arrange desks
in a way that minimizes face-to-face contact.

3. If necessary, we plan to utilize other campus spaces for instructional activities (e.g. outdoors).

4. If necessary, broadcast to other classrooms and students' distance learning at home.

5. Provide staffing to ensure physical distancing for younger students and students with special needs.

6. Arrange developmentally appropriate activities for smaller group activities and rearrange furniture and play spaces to
maintain separation, when possible.

7. Address physical distancing objectives as students move between classrooms.

8. Address potential issues from physical distancing rules that could result in unintended segregation of students with
disabilities on campuses away from peers without disabilities.

vi. Food Service

1. We plan to consider strategies to limit physical interaction during meal preparation and meal service (e.g., serving
meals outside, increasing meal service access points, staggering cafeteria use).

2. Suspend the use of share tables and self-service buffets for food and condiments.

3. If applicable, we plan to install physical barriers, such as sneeze guards and partitions, at point of sale and other area s
where maintaining a physical distance of 3 feet is difficult.

4. If we provide meal service in classrooms, we plan on cleaning and removing all trash.

• Staff physical distancing:

1. Avoid staff congregations in work environments, break rooms, staff rooms, and bathrooms.

2. Avoid grouping staff together for training or staff development. We plan to consider conducting the training virtually
or, if in-person, we plan to ensure that distancing is maintained.

ii. If applicable, we plan to adjust staff schedules (through negotiations) to accommodate new student schedules and
physical distancing strategies.

iii. In accordance with Cal/OSHA regulations and guidance, we plan to evaluate all workspaces in order to ensure that
employees can maintain physical distancing to the extent possible.
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1. Where possible, we plan to rearrange workspaces to incorporate a minimum of 3 feet between employees and
students.

2. If physical distancing between workspaces or between employees and students and visitors is not possible, we plan to
add physical barriers that cannot be moved to separate workspaces.

Individuals will be kept as far apart as possible when there are situations where three feet of physical distancing cannot 
be achieved. 

Face Coverings 

We will provide clean, undamaged face coverings and ensure they are properly worn by anyone on campus  over the 

nose and mouth when indoors, and when outdoors and less than three feet away from another person, including non-

employees, and where required by orders from the California Department of Public Health (CDPH) or local health 

department.   

It is mandatory that everyone onsite wears a face covering. Should someone need a face covering or replacement, the 

school will provide disposable face coverings and/or face shields. Face coverings do not replace the need for physical 

distancing and frequent handwashing. It is required that employees notify the school administrator  about non-

employees who are not wearing face coverings. 

The following are exceptions to the use of face coverings in our workplace: 

• When an employee is alone in a room.

• While eating and drinking at the workplace, provided employees are at least three feet apart and outside air supply

to the area, if indoors, has been maximized to the extent possible.

• Employees wearing respiratory protection in accordance with CCR Title 8 section 5144 or other safety orders.

• Employees who cannot wear face coverings due to a medical or mental health condition or disability, or who are

hearing-impaired or communicating with a hearing-impaired person. Alternatives will be considered on a case-by-

case basis.

• Specific tasks that cannot feasibly be performed with a face covering, where employees will be kept at least six feet

apart.

Any employee not wearing a face covering, face shield with a drape or other effective alternative, or respiratory 

protection, for any reason, shall be at least six feet apart from all other persons unless the unmasked employee is tested 

at least twice weekly for COVID-19. 

Engineering controls 

We implement the following measures for situations where we cannot maintain at least three feet between individuals:

We will implement at least three feet between individuals in all areas of the school campus. Also, the students will spend

no more than 55 minutes in a classroom at any given time in order to reduce exposure.  

We maximize, to the extent feasible, the quantity of outside air for our buildings with mechanical or natural ventilation 

systems by:  

Our school's facility manager will replace the air filters 1-2 times a week in all buildings, the ventilation system will be 

checked, all windows will be remained open, and classroom doors will be encouraged to be kept open. We have also 

purchased Smart True HEPA Air Purifiers for all classrooms. 
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Cleaning and disinfecting 

We implement the following cleaning and disinfection measures for frequently touched surfaces: 

• All staff will have access to cleaning supplies to disinfect in their classrooms/offices.
• We plan to disinfect after each class period and at the end of the school day.
• The facilities manager will also disinfect all areas of the campus, especially the most used place.
• The campus will be cleaned daily and deep cleaned and disinfected weekly.
• In accordance with CDC guidance, we plan to avoid sharing electronic devices, books, and other games or

learning aids and disinfect after each use.
• We will continue to disinfect all items before another person uses it.

Should we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will implement the following procedures: 

i. In consultation with the local public health officials, the appropriate school official may consider whether school

closure is warranted and length of time is based on the risk level within the specific community as determined by the

local public health officer.

ii. In accordance with standard guidance for isolation at home after close contact, the classroom or office where the

COVID-19-positive individual was based will be closed temporarily as students or staff isolate. We will close the room

immediately and begin cleaning and disinfecting the entire room with PPE. Any and all materials and equipment used by

an individual with a positive COVID-19 case during the high-risk exposure period will also be properly cleaned and

disinfected. The individual who will clean the room will wear protective equipment during this process and will be

trained on how to safely clean the infected area.

iii. Additional close contacts at school outside of a classroom will be notified and asked to isolate at home.

iv. Additional areas of the school visited by the COVID-19-positive individual may also need to be closed temporarily for

cleaning and disinfection.

v. We will develop a plan for continuity of education, medical and social services, meal programs and establish alternate

mechanisms for these to continue.

Shared tools, equipment and personal protective equipment (PPE) 

PPE must not be shared, e.g., gloves, goggles and face shields. 

Items that employees come in regular physical contact with, such as phones, headsets, desks, keyboards, writing 

materials, instruments and tools must also not be shared, to the extent feasible. Where there must be sharing, the items 

will be disinfected between uses by: 

In accordance with CDC and California Department of Pesticide Regulation (CDPR) guidance, and in consultation with 
local public health officials, we plan to: 

i. Have a safe and correct application of disinfectants using personal protective equipment and ventilation
recommended for cleaning.

ii. Disinfect surfaces between uses, such as:

1. Desks and tables

2. Chairs
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3. Keyboards, computers, phones, headsets, copy machines

iii. Disinfect frequently—at least daily—high-touch surfaces, such as:

1. Door handles

2. Handrails

3. Drinking dispensers

4. Sink handles

5. Restroom surfaces

6. Games, art supplies, instructional materials

7. Playground equipment

iv. Air out the space before students arrive when cleaning. We also plan to do thorough cleaning when students are not
present.

v. Close off areas used by any sick person and not using before cleaning and disinfection. To reduce risk of exposure, we
plan to wait 24 hours before cleaning and disinfecting. If it is not possible to wait 24 hours, we will wait as long as
possible.

• All employees will be trained on how to safely clean and disinfect.

Hand sanitizing 

In order to implement effective hand sanitizing procedures, we: 

• In accordance with CDPH and Cal/OSHA guidance and in consultation with local public health officials, our plan
for handwashing includes:

i. Providing opportunities for students and staff to meet handwashing frequency guidance.

ii. Ensuring sufficient access to handwashing and sanitizer stations. We will utilize portable hand washing stations
throughout our site and near classrooms to minimize movement and congregations in bathrooms to the extent possible.

iii. Ensuring fragrance-free hand sanitizer (with a minimum of 60 percent alcohol) is available at or near all workstations.

• Training of Proper Handwashing Techniques and PPE/EPG Use:
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i. We plan to train students and staff on how to scrub their hands with soap for at least 20 seconds or use hand sanitizer 
if soap and water are not accessible. We will teach staff and students on how to use paper towels (or single use cloth 
towels) to dry hands thoroughly.

ii. We plan to ensure that all students and staff will wash their hands when: arriving and leaving home; arriving at and 
leaving school; after playing outside; after having close contact with others; after using shared surfaces or tools; before 
and after using restroom; after blowing nose, coughing, and sneezing; and before and after eating and preparing foods. 
We will ensure this by asking students and staff to wash and/or sanitize their hands multiple times throughout the day.

iii. We plan to follow CDC guidance on proper PPE use.
• We will ensure sufficient supplies of hand sanitizers, soap, handwashing stations, tissues, no-touch trash cans, 

and paper towels.
• All students and staff will wash their hands prior to entering campus and throughout the school day. We will 

allow time for all students and staff to wash their hands frequently. We will even ask them to sanitize their 
hands multiple times a day as entering and exiting classrooms and school campus.

Personal protective equipment (PPE) used to control employees’ exposure to COVID-19 

We evaluate the need for PPE (such as gloves, goggles, and face shields) as required by CCR Title 8, section 3380, and 

provide such PPE as needed. 

When it comes to respiratory protection, we evaluate the need in accordance with CCR Title 8 section 5144 when the 

physical distancing requirements are not feasible or maintained. [reference section 3205(c)(E) for details on required 

respirator and eye protection use.] 

We provide and ensure use of eye protection and respiratory protection in accordance with section 5144 when 

employees are exposed to procedures that may aerosolize potentially infectious material such as saliva or respiratory 

tract fluids.  

Along with having PPE readily available at all times, we will also provide PPE Training.  

Our plan to provide PPE Training is in accordance with CDC guidance in order to:  

i. Train and provide information to staff and students on proper use, removal, and washing of cloth face coverings.

ii. Train students and staff regarding how face coverings are not recommended for anyone who has trouble breathing or

is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove the covering without assistance. We plan to make

reasonable accommodations, such as a face shield with a cloth drape for those who are unable to wear face coverings

for medical reasons. Per Cal/OSHA, considerations for face shields will include a cloth drape attached across the bottom

and tucked into the shirt.

iii. Train staff and students to understand that cloth face coverings are meant to protect other people in case the wearer

is unknowingly infected (many people carry COVID-19 but do not have symptoms). We plan to train them that cloth face

coverings are not surgical masks, respirators, or personal protective equipment.

Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases 

This will be accomplished by using the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form. 

Employees who had potential COVID-19 exposure in our workplace will be: 
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In the case that an employee has potential COVID-19 exposure in the workplace, there will be paid sub coverage, and we 

will offer COVID-19 testing at no cost. The COVID-19 test will be covered through the San Diego County Office of 

Education. We will be sure to address these benefits in the Training and Instructions that we will provide to all 

employees. 

System for Communicating 

Our goal is to ensure that we have effective two-way communication with our employees, in a form they can readily 

understand, and that it includes the following information:  

• Who employees should report COVID-19 symptoms and possible hazards to, and how:

They should be reported to the school director, Elias vargas and the COVID-19 Coordinator, Roshin Mohammed. 

• That employees can report symptoms and hazards without fear of reprisal.

• Our procedures or policies for accommodating employees with medical or other conditions that put them at

increased risk of severe COVID-19 illness.

• Where testing is not required, how employees can access COVID-19 testing:

Testing is provided for free at local health centers and provided by San Diego County Office of Education.  

• In the event we are required to provide testing because of a workplace exposure or outbreak, we will communicate

the plan for providing testing and inform affected employees of the reason for the testing and the possible

consequences of a positive test.

If needed, we will inform staff about the testing sites that are free for school employees. The cost of the COVID-19 test 

will be covered through the San Diego County Office of Education. 

• Information about COVID-19 hazards employees (including other employers and individuals in contact with our

workplace) may be exposed to, what is being done to control those hazards, and our COVID-19 policies and

procedures.

The amount of people on campus will be limited. However, everyone that enters onsite will be screened upon arrival. 

This includes a temperature read, asking them to wash or sanitize their hands, notifying the school about any possible 

exposure to COVID-19, and to stay home when not feeling well. 

Training and Instruction 

We will provide effective training and instruction that includes:  

• Our COVID-19 policies and procedures to protect employees from COVID-19 hazards.

• Information regarding COVID-19-related benefits to which the employee may be entitled under applicable federal,

state, or local laws.

• The fact that:

o COVID-19 is an infectious disease that can be spread through the air.
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o COVID-19 may be transmitted when a person touches a contaminated object and then touches their eyes, nose,

or mouth.

o An infectious person may have no symptoms.

• Methods of physical distancing of at least three feet and the importance of combining physical distancing with the 
wearing of face coverings.

• The fact that particles containing the virus can travel more than three feet, especially indoors, so physical distancing 
must be combined with other controls, including face coverings and hand hygiene, to be effective.

• The importance of frequent hand washing with soap and water for at least 20 seconds and using hand sanitizer 
when employees do not have immediate access to a sink or hand washing facility, and that hand sanitizer does not 
work if the hands are soiled.

• Proper use of face coverings and the fact that face coverings are not respiratory protective equipment - face 
coverings are intended to primarily protect other individuals from the wearer of the face covering.

• COVID-19 symptoms, and the importance of obtaining a COVID-19 test and not coming to work if the employee has 
COVID-19 symptoms.

Staff will also participate in online COVID-19 preventions and protection trainings from SafeSchools. 

Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster will be used to document this training. 

Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases 

Where we have a COVID-19 case in our workplace, we will limit transmission by: 

• Ensuring that COVID-19 cases are excluded from the workplace until our return-to-work requirements are met.

• Excluding employees with COVID-19 exposure from the workplace for 14 days after the last known COVID-19

exposure to a COVID-19 case.

• Continuing and maintaining an employee’s earnings, seniority, and all other employee rights and benef its whenever

we’ve demonstrated that the COVID-19 exposure is work related. This will be accomplished by

All employees have paid sick leave. 

• Providing employees at the time of exclusion with information on available benefits.

Reporting, Recordkeeping, and Access 

It is our policy to: 

• Report information about COVID-19 cases at our workplace to the local health department whenever required by

law, and provide any related information requested by the local health department.

• Report immediately to Cal/OSHA any COVID-19-related serious illnesses or death, as defined under CCR Title 8

section 330(h), of an employee occurring in our place of employment or in connection with any employment.

• Maintain records of the steps taken to implement our written COVID-19 Prevention Program in accordance with CCR

Title 8 section 3203(b).

• Make our written COVID-19 Prevention Program available at the workplace to employees, authorized employee

representatives, and to representatives of Cal/OSHA immediately upon request.

• Use the Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases form to keep a record of and track all COVID-19 cases. The

information will be made available to employees, authorized employee representatives, or as otherwise required by

law, with personal identifying information removed.
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Anytime an employees enters campus, we have a google sheet entitled "COVID-19: Staff Tracking," which tracks the 
following: 

• Date
• Temperatures
• Any COVID-19 related symptoms
• Whether or not they have been exposed to COVID-19 in the last 24 hours
• Whether or not they have tested positive for COVID-19

Anytime a parent/ guardian or visitor wishes to enter campus, we will sign them in, record their temperature, ask them 
if they have been exposed to anyone with COVID-19, or if they have had any COVID related symptoms in the last 24 
hours. If they answer yes to any of these questions, or have a fever, they will not be allowed to enter campus grounds in 
order to ensure the safety of all staff and students.  

Return-to-Work Criteria 

• COVID-19 cases with COVID-19 symptoms will not return to work until all the following have occurred:

o At least 24 hours have passed since a fever of 100.4 or higher has resolved without the use of fever-reducing

medications.

o COVID-19 symptoms have improved.

o At least 10 days have passed since COVID-19 symptoms first appeared.

• COVID-19 cases who tested positive but never developed COVID-19 symptoms will not return to work until a

minimum of 10 days have passed since the date of specimen collection of their first positive COVID-19 test.

• A negative COVID-19 test will not be required for an employee to return to work.

• If an order to isolate or quarantine an employee is issued by a local or state health official, the employee will not

return to work until the period of isolation or quarantine is completed or the order is lifted. If no period was

specified, then the period will be 10 days from the time the order to isolate was effective, or 14 days from the time

the order to quarantine was effective.

Dr. Elias Vargas March 2, 2021 

Title of Owner or Top Management Representative Signature Date 
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Appendix A: Identification of COVID-19 Hazards 

All persons, regardless of symptoms or negative COVID-19 test results, will be considered potentially infectious.  

Particular attention will be paid to areas where people may congregate or come in contact with one another, regardless 

of whether employees are performing an assigned work task or not. For example:  meetings, entrances, bathrooms, 

hallways, aisles, walkways, elevators, break or eating areas, cool-down areas, and waiting areas. 

Evaluation of potential workplace exposure will be to all persons at the workplace or who may enter the workplace, 

including coworkers, employees of other entities, members of the public, customers or cl ients, and independent 

contractors. We will consider how employees and other persons enter, leave, and travel through the workplace, in 

addition to addressing fixed work locations. 
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Appendix B: COVID-19 Inspections 
 

Date:  

 

Name of Person Conducting the Inspection:  

 

Work Location Evaluated:  

 

Exposure Controls Status Person Assigned to Correct Date Corrected 

Engineering    

Barriers/Partitions    

Ventilation (amount of fresh air 
and filtration maximized) 

   

Additional room air filtration    

 

Exposure Controls Status Person Assigned to Correct Date Corrected 

Administrative    

Physical distancing    

Surface cleaning and 
disinfection (frequently enough 

and adequate supplies) 
   

Hand washing facilities 
(adequate numbers and 

supplies) 
   

Disinfecting and hand sanitizing 
solutions being used according 

to manufacturer instructions 
   

 

 

Exposure Controls Status Person Assigned to Correct Date Corrected 

PPE (not shared, available and 
being worn) 

   

Face coverings (cleaned 
sufficiently often) 

   

Face shields/goggles    

Respiratory protection    
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Appendix C: Investigating COVID-19 Cases 
 

All personal identifying information of COVID-19 cases or symptoms will be kept confidential. All COVID-19 testing or 

related medical services provided by us will be provided in a manner that ensures the confidentiality of employees, with 

the exception of unredacted information on COVID-19 cases that will be provided immediately upon request to the local 

health department, CDPH, Cal/OSHA, the National Institute for Occupational Safety and Health (NIOSH), or as otherwise 

required by law. 

 

All employees’ medical records will also be kept confidential and not disclosed or reported without the employee’s 

express written consent to any person within or outside the workplace, with the following exceptions: (1) Unredacted 

medical records provided to the local health department, CDPH, Cal/OSHA, NIOSH, or as otherwise required by law 

immediately upon request; and (2) Records that do not contain individually identifiable medical information or from 

which individually identifiable medical information has been removed. 

 

Date:  

 

Name of Person Conducting the Investigation:  

 

Employee (or non-
employee*) name: 

 
Occupation (if non-
employee, why they were 
in the workplace): 

 

Location where employee 
worked (or non-employee 
was present in the 
workplace): 

 
Date investigation was 
initiated: 

 

Was COVID-19 test offered?  
Name(s) of staff involved in 
the investigation: 

 

Date and time the COVID-
19 case was last present in 
the workplace: 

 
Date of the positive or 
negative test and/or 
diagnosis: 

 

Date the case first had one 
or more COVID-19 
symptoms: 

 

Information received 
regarding COVID-19 test 
results and onset of 
symptoms (attach 
documentation): 

 

 

Results of the evaluation of 
the COVID-19 case and all 
locations at the workplace that 
may have been visited by the 
COVID-19 case during the high-
risk exposure period, and who 
may have been exposed 
(attach additional 
information): 
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Notice given (within one business day, in a way that does not reveal any personal identifying information of the 

COVID-19 case) of the potential COVID-19 exposure to: 

All employees who may 
have had COVID-19 
exposure and their 

authorized 
representatives. 

Date:  

Names of employees that were 
notified: 

 

Independent contractors 
and other employers 

present at the workplace 
during the high-risk 

exposure period. 

Date:  

Names of individuals that were 
notified: 

 

What were the workplace 
conditions that could have 

contributed to the risk of 
COVID-19 exposure? 

 
What could be done to 

reduce exposure to 
COVID-19? 

 

Was local health 
department notified? 

 Date:  

*Should an employer be made aware of a non-employee infection source COVID-19 status. 
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Appendix D: COVID-19 Training Roster 
 

Date:  

 

Name of Person Conducting the Training:  

 

Employee Name Signature 

startcollapse 
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Additional Consideration #1 

 

Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks 
 

This section of CPP will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace for a 14-day 

period. 

 

COVID-19 testing 

• We will provide COVID-19 testing to all employees in our exposed workplace except for employees who were not 

present during the period of an outbreak identified by a local health department or the relevant 14-day period. 

COVID-19 testing will be provided at no cost to employees during employees’ working hours.  

• COVID-19 testing consists of the following: 

o All employees in our exposed workplace will be immediately tested and then tested again one week later. 

Negative COVID-19 test results of employees with COVID-19 exposure will not impact the duration of any 

quarantine period required by, or orders issued by, the local health department. 

o After the first two COVID-19 tests, we will continue to provide COVID-19 testing of employees who remain at the 

workplace at least once per week, or more frequently if recommended by the local health department, until 

there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace for a 14-day period. 

o We will provide additional testing when deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA. 

 

Exclusion of COVID-19 cases 

We will ensure COVID-19 cases and employees who had COVID-19 exposure are excluded from the workplace in 

accordance with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Return to Work Criteria requirements, and local health 

officer orders if applicable. 

 

Investigation of workplace COVID-19 illness 

We will immediately investigate and determine possible workplace-related factors that contributed to the COVID-19 

outbreak in accordance with our CPP Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases. 

 

COVID-19 investigation, review and hazard correction 

In addition to our CPP Identification and Evaluation of COVID-19 Hazards and Correction of COVID-19 Hazards, we will 

immediately perform a review of potentially relevant COVID-19 policies, procedures, and controls and implement 

changes as needed to prevent further spread of COVID-19. 

 

The investigation and review will be documented and include: 

• Investigation of new or unabated COVID-19 hazards including: 

o Our leave policies and practices and whether employees are discouraged from remaining home when sick.  

o Our COVID-19 testing policies. 

o Insufficient outdoor air. 

o Insufficient air filtration. 

o Lack of physical distancing. 

• Updating the review: 

o Every thirty days that the outbreak continues. 

o In response to new information or to new or previously unrecognized COVID-19 hazards. 

o When otherwise necessary. 

• Implementing changes to reduce the transmission of COVID-19 based on the investigation and review. We will 

consider: 
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o Moving indoor tasks outdoors or having them performed remotely. 

o Increasing outdoor air supply when work is done indoors. 

o Improving air filtration. 

o Increasing physical distancing as much as possible. 

o Respiratory protection. 

 

Notifications to the local health department 

• Immediately, but no longer than 48 hours after learning of three or more COVID-19 cases in our workplace, we 

will contact the local health department for guidance on preventing the further spread of COVID-19 within the 

workplace. 

• We will provide to the local health department the total number of COVID-19 cases and for each COVID-19 case, 

the name, contact information, occupation, workplace location, business address, the hospitalization and/or 

fatality status, and North American Industry Classification System code of the workplace of the COVID-19 case, 

and any other information requested by the local health department. We will continue to give notice to the local 

health department of any subsequent COVID-19 cases at our workplace. 
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Additional Consideration #2 

 

Major COVID-19 Outbreaks 
 

This section of CPP will stay in effect until there are no new COVID-19 cases detected in our workplace for a 14-day 

period. 

 

COVID-19 testing 

We will provide twice a week COVID-19 testing, or more frequently if recommended by the local health department, to 

all employees present at our exposed workplace during the relevant 30-day period(s) and who remain at the workplace. 

COVID-19 testing will be provided at no cost to employees during employees’ working hours.  

 

Exclusion of COVID-19 cases 

We will ensure COVID-19 cases and employees with COVID-19 exposure are excluded from the workplace in accordance 

with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Return to Work Criteria, and any relevant local health department 

orders. 

 

Investigation of workplace COVID-19 illnesses 

We will comply with the requirements of our CPP Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases. 

 

COVID-19 hazard correction 

In addition to the requirements of our CPP Correction of COVID-19 Hazards, we will take the following actions: 

• In buildings or structures with mechanical ventilation, we will filter recirculated air with Minimum Efficiency 

Reporting Value (MERV) 13 or higher efficiency filters if compatible with the ventilation system. If MERV-13 or 

higher filters are not compatible with the ventilation system, we will use filters with the highest compatible filtering 

efficiency. We will also evaluate whether portable or mounted High Efficiency Particulate Air (HEPA) filtration units, 

or other air cleaning systems would reduce the risk of transmission and implement their use to the degree feasible. 

• We will determine the need for a respiratory protection program or changes to an existing respiratory protection 

program under CCR Title 8 section 5144 to address COVID-19 hazards. 

• We will evaluate whether to halt some or all operations at our workplace until COVID-19 hazards have been 

corrected 

• Implement any other control measures deemed necessary by Cal/OSHA. 

 

Notifications to the local health department 

We will comply with the requirements of our Multiple COVID-19 Infections and COVID-19 Outbreaks-Notifications to 

the Local Health Department. 
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Additional Consideration #3 

 

COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Housing 
 

Assignment of housing units 

We will ensure that shared housing unit assignments are prioritized in the following order:  

• Residents who usually maintain a household together outside of work, such as family members, will be housed in 

the same housing unit without other persons. 

• Residents who work in the same crew or work together at the same worksite will be housed in the same housing 

unit without other persons. 

• Employees who do not usually maintain a common household, work crew, or worksite will be housed in the same 

housing unit only when no other housing alternatives are possible. 

 

Physical distancing and controls 

We will ensure: 

• The premises are of sufficient size and layout to permit at least six feet of physical distancing between residents in 

housing units, common areas, and other areas of the premises. 

• Beds are spaced at least six feet apart in all directions and positioned to maximize the distance between sleepers’ 

heads. For beds positioned next to each other, i.e., side by side, the beds will be arranged so that the head of one 

bed is next to the foot of the next bed. For beds positioned across from each other, i.e., end to end, the beds will be 

arranged so that the foot of one bed is closest to the foot of the next bed. Bunk beds will not be used.  

• Maximization of the quantity and supply of outdoor air and increase filtration efficiency to the highest level 

compatible with the existing ventilation system in housing units.  

 

Face coverings 

We will provide face coverings to all residents and provide information to residents on when they should be used in 

accordance with state or local health officer orders or guidance. 

 

Cleaning and disinfection 

We will ensure that: 

• Housing units, kitchens, bathrooms, and common areas are effectively cleaned and disinfected at least once a day to 

prevent the spread of COVID-19. Cleaning and disinfecting shall be done in a manner that protects the privacy of 

residents. 

• Unwashed dishes, drinking glasses, cups, eating utensils, and similar items are not shared.  

 

Screening 

We will encourage residents to report COVID-19 symptoms to: 

 

COVID-19 testing 

We will establish, implement, and maintain effective policies and procedures for COVID-19 testing of occupants who had 

a COVID-19 exposure, who have COVID-19 symptoms, or as recommended by the local health department. 

 

Isolation of COVID-19 cases and persons with COVID-19 exposure 

We will: 

• Effectively isolate COVID-19 exposed residents from all other occupants. Effective isolation will include providing 

COVID-19 exposed residents with a private bathroom, sleeping area, and cooking and eating facility. 
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• Effectively isolate COVID-19 cases from all occupants who are not COVID-19 cases. Effective isolation will include 

housing COVID-19 cases only with other COVID-19 cases, and providing COVID-19 case occupants with a sleeping 

area, bathroom, and cooking and eating facility that is not shared by non-COVID-19-case occupants. 

• Keep confidential any personal identifying information regarding COVID-19 cases and persons with COVID-19 

symptoms, in accordance with our CPP Investigating and Responding to COVID-19 Cases. 

• End isolation in accordance with our CPP Exclusion of COVID-19 Cases and Return to Work Criteria, and any 

applicable local or state health officer orders. 
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Additional Consideration #4 

 

COVID-19 Prevention in Employer-Provided Transportation to and from Work 
 

Assignment of transportation 

We will prioritize shared transportation assignments in the following order: 

• Employees residing in the same housing unit will be transported in the same vehicle.  

• Employees working in the same crew or worksite will be transported in the same vehicle.  

• Employees who do not share the same household, work crew or worksite will be transported in the same vehicle 

only when no other transportation alternatives are possible. 

 

Physical distancing and face coverings 

We will ensure that the: 

• Physical distancing and face covering requirements of our CPP Physical Distancing and Face Coverings are followed 

for employees waiting for transportation. 

• Vehicle operator and any passengers are separated by at least three feet in all directions during the operation of the 

vehicle, regardless of the vehicle’s normal capacity. Vehicle operator and any passengers are provided and wear a 

face covering in the vehicle as required by our CPP Face Coverings. 

 

Screening 

We will develop, implement, and maintain effective procedures for screening and excluding drivers and riders with 

COVID-19 symptoms prior to boarding shared transportation.  

 

Cleaning and disinfecting  

We will ensure that: 

• All high-contact surfaces (door handles, seatbelt buckles, armrests, etc.) used by passengers are cleaned and 

disinfected before each trip. 

• All high-contact surfaces used by drivers, such as the steering wheel, armrests, seatbelt buckles, door handles and 

shifter, are cleaned and disinfected between different drivers. 

• We provide sanitizing materials, training on how to use them properly, and ensure they are kept in adequate supply.  

 

Ventilation 

We will ensure that vehicle windows are kept open, and the ventilation system set to maximize outdoor air and not set 

to recirculate air. Windows do not have to be kept open if one or more of the following conditions exist:  

 

• The vehicle has functioning air conditioning in use and the outside temperature is greater than 90 degrees 

Fahrenheit. 

• The vehicle has functioning heating in use and the outside temperature is less than 60 degrees Fahrenheit.  

• Protection is needed from weather conditions, such as rain or snow. 

• The vehicle has a cabin air filter in use and the U.S. EPA Air Quality Index for any pollutant is greater than 100.  

 

Hand hygiene 

We will provide hand sanitizer in each vehicle and ensure that all drivers and riders sanitize their hands before entering 

and exiting the vehicle. Hand sanitizers with methyl alcohol are prohibited. 
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  Date: March 2,2021-------- 
 

 

2021 COVID-19 School Guidance Checklist 
 

Name of Local Educational Agency or Equivalent:  

City Heights Preparatory Charter School-------- 
 

 

Number of schools:  

1-------- 
 

 

Enrollment:  

130-------- 
 

 

Superintendent (or equivalent) Name:  

Elias Vargas-------- 
 

 

Address: 

4260 54th Street-------- 

 
City 

San Diego, CA, 92115-------- 
 

Phone Number: 

619-795-3137-------- 

 
Email: 

evargas@cityheightsprep.org-------- 
 

 

Date of proposed reopening:  

April 26, 2021-------- 
 

 

County:  

San Diego-------- 
 

 

Current Tier:  

Purple-------- 
 

 

(please indicate Purple, Red, 
Orange or Yellow) 

 

Type of LEA:  

City Heights Preparatory Charter Schoool-------- 
 

Grade Level (check all that apply) 

 TK ----
---- 

 2nd   5th  X 8th  X 11th 

----
---- 

                     
 K           3rd  X 6th  X 9th  X 12th 

----
---- 

 ----
----         

           
 1st           4th  X 7th  X 10t

h 
   

 

 

 

 
This form and any applicable attachments should be posted publicly on the website of the local educational agency (or 
equivalent) prior to reopening or if an LEA or equivalent has already opened for in-person instruction. For those in the 
Purple Tier, materials must additionally be submitted to your local health officer (LHO), local County Office of Education, 
and the State School Safety Team prior to reopening, per the Guidance on Schools. 
 
The email address for submission to the State School Safety for All Team for LEAs in Purple Tier is K12csp@cdph.ca.gov 
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LEAs or equivalent in Counties with a case rate >=25/100,000 individuals can submit materials but cannot re-open a 
school until the county is below 25 cases per 100,000 (adjusted rate) for 5 consecutive days. 

For Local Educational Agencies (LEAs or equivalent) in ALL TIERS: 

I, Dr.Elias Vargas, post to the website of the local educational agency (or equivalent) the COVID Safety Plan, 
which consists of two elements: the COVID-19 Prevention Program (CPP), pursuant to CalOSHA requirements, 
and this CDPH COVID-19 Guidance Checklist and accompanying documents, which satisfies requirements for 
the safe reopening of schools per CDPH Guidance on Schools. For those seeking to open while in the Purple Tier, 
these plans have also been submitted to the local health officer (LHO) and the State School Safety Team.  

I confirm that reopening plan(s) address the following, consistent with guidance from the California Depart ment 
of Public Health and the local health department: 

We anticipate to open while in the red-tier, and when we do, we will ensure that we follow CalOSHA guidelines 
and procedures, as well as the CDPH Guidance on Schools. We will also continue to update ourselves on any 
new guidance and information as they become available from CDC. 

We will ensure: 
1. That face coverings are worn at all times.
2. That there are stable groups.
3. That physical distancing is practiced at all times.
4. That there is adequate ventilation.
5. That all individuals on campus follow our hand hygiene guidelines.
6. That there are symptom and close contact exposure screenings, with exclusion from school for staff or
students with symptoms or with confirmed close contact.
7. That there is surveillance or screening testing available.

Stable group structures (where applicable): How students and staff will be kept in stable groups with fixed 
membership that stay together for all activities (e.g., instruction, lunch, recess) and minimize/avoid contact with 
other groups or individuals who are not part of the stable group. 

The anticipated plan is that students will be offered a lunch meal. If we follow a half day student schedule 
students will receive a bagged meal to take home. If we follow a full day in-person instruction schedule, 
students will be offered a meal on campus. There will be no recess. 

Please provide specific information regarding: 

How many students and staff will be in each planned stable, group structure? (If planning more than one type of group, 
what is the minimum and maximum number of students and staff in the groups?)  

There will be no more than 12 students per group, and no more than 3 teachers per group. There will be 3 groups 
(Group A, Group B, and Group C). The groups will be by grade levels and grade levels will not come into contact with 
one another.-------- 

If you have departmentalized classes, how will you organize staff and students in stable groups?  

Staff and students will be organized through either block scheduling, alternating days and times, along with a mix of 
in-person and virtual learning. They will be separated by grade level. -------- 
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If you have electives, how will you prevent or minimize in-person contact for members of different stable groups? 

Electives will be broken up into small groups by grade level. 50% of the electives will be in-person instructions, and 
the remaining 50% will be through asynchronous learning. --------

Entrance, Egress, and Movement Within the School: How movement of students, staff, and parents will be 
managed to avoid close contact and/or mixing of cohorts. 

Students will have staggered and controlled release times. The campus and office will have marked signage 
displaying 3 feet apart in social distancing. 

Face Coverings and Other Essential Protective Gear: How CDPH’s face covering requirements will be satisfied 
and enforced for staff and students. 

All staff and students will be required to wear a face covering at all times. 

Health Screenings for Students and Staff: How students and staff will be screened for symptoms of COVID-19 
and how ill students or staff will be separated from others and sent home immediately.  

Our COVID-19 Coordinator, Roshin Mohammed, will take temperature checks everyday and administer COVID-
19 protocol questions. 

Healthy Hygiene Practices: The availability of handwashing stations and hand sanitizer, and how their safe and 
appropriate use will be promoted and incorporated into routines for staff and students. 

We will have hand sanitizer available in all classrooms, in all offices, and available while entering campus. We 
will have portable hand washing stations available at all times upon arrival so that anyone entering the 
campus can wash their hands. Students and staff will also be asked to wash and/or sanitize their hands 
multiple times throughout the day. Staff and students will be trained on how to properly wash and sanitize 
their hands, along with frequent reminders to regularly keep up with healthy hygiene practices. Moreover, 
students will be provided with their own Mist & Go  Eco-Friendly Sanitizer, which they will use to sanitize their 
work area while in class. 

Identification and Tracing of Contacts: Actions that staff will take when there is a confirmed case. Confirm that 
the school(s) have designated staff persons to support contact tracing, such as creation and submission of lists 
of exposed students and staff to the local health department and notification of exposed persons. Each school 
must designate a person for the local health department to contact about COVID-19. 

If there is a confirmed case, we will immediately clean and disinfect the area, along with testing all staff who 
got into contact with the individual who has tested positive for COVID-19. Our school's COVID-19 Coordinator 
will track all information regarding the case, such as documenting when they tested positive, when it is safe for 
them to return, all names of any students or staff who has gotten into contact with them, as well as informing 
all staff about this case. With all the information that has been compiled, the COVID-19 coordinator will submit 
the list of exposed students and staff to the local health department and notify all those who have been 
exposed. 

Physical Distancing: How space and routines will be arranged to allow for physical distancing of students and 
staff. 

We will ensure that all students and staff maintain at least 3 feet of physical distancing at all times. There will 
be no exceptions. 

Please provide the planned maximum and minimum distance between students in classrooms.  
Maximum: 10 feet 
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Minimum 3 feet 

If this is less than 6 feet, please explain why it is not possible to maintain a minimum of at least 6 feet.  

It is less than 6 feet because of the new 3 feet distance guidelines from the CDC. -------- 

Staff Training and Family Education: How staff will be trained and families will be educated on the application 
and enforcement of the plan. 

• We will continue to offer Professional Development with updates on COVID-19, reviewing (and
updating when necessary) our current guidelines and protocols surrounding the aforementioned
practices as well as what it will mean to work together to hold one another accountable during this
time. The school director will adhere to a strict disciplinary process should any employee not follow
the practices and guidelines put into place to ensure a safe learning and teaching environment. Staff
will be required to follow and adhere to public health guidelines and school policies. In the case that
staff does not follow and adhere to these policies and guidelines, disciplinary measures may take
effect. These disciplinary measures will be in accordance with employees rights and due process.

• Staff will participate in online COVID-19 preventions and protection trainings from SafeSchools.
• We will continue to hold School Site Council and Family meetings. We will post updates to

ParentSquare with any and all new information regarding our School Plan for Safe Reopening.

• Training for Face and Nose Covering for students and staff:

i. Use tissue to wipe the nose and cough and sneeze inside the tissue.

ii. Not touch the face or face covering.

• PPE Training- our plan to provide PPE Training is in accordance with CDC guidance in order to:

i. Train and provide information to employees on proper use, removal, and washing of cloth face coverings.

ii. Train employees regarding how face coverings are not recommended for anyone who has trouble breathing
or is unconscious, incapacitated, or otherwise unable to remove the covering without assistance. We plan to
make reasonable accommodations, such as a face shield with a cloth drape for those who are unable to wear
face coverings for medical reasons. Per Cal/OSHA, considerations for face shields will include a cloth drape
attached across the bottom and tucked into the shirt.

iii. Train employees to understand that cloth face coverings are meant to protect other people in case the
wearer is unknowingly infected (many people carry COVID-19 but do not have symptoms). We plan to train
them that cloth face coverings are not surgical masks, respirators, or personal protective equipment.

• We also plan to provide staff training or utilize state-provided training on:

i. Disinfecting frequency and tools and chemicals used in accordance with the Healthy Schools Act, CDPR
guidance, and Cal/OSHA regulations. For staff who use hazardous chemicals for cleaning, we plan on providing
the specialized training that is required.

ii. Physical distancing of staff and students.

iii. Symptom screening, which includes temperature checks.
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iv. Updates to the Injury and Illness Prevention Program (IIPP). 
 
v. State and local health standards and recommendations, including, but not limited to, the following:  
 
1. Proper use of protective equipment, including information on limitations of some face coverings that do not 
protect the wearer and are not PPE but can help protect people near the wearer. Face coverings do not 
replace the need for physical distancing and frequent handwashing. Cloth face coverings are most essential 
when physical distancing is not possible. We also plan to include training on removal and washing of cloth face 
coverings. 
 
2. Cough and sneeze etiquette. 
 
3. Keeping one’s hands away from one’s face. 
 
4. Frequent hand washing and proper technique. 
 
5. Confidentiality around health recording and reporting. 
 
vi. Training for school health staff on clinical manifestations of COVID-19, pediatric presentations, and CDC 
transmission-based precautions. 
 
vii. Training on trauma-informed practices and suicide prevention. 
 

 

 

 Testing of Staff: How school officials will ensure that students and staff who have symptoms of COVID-19 or 
have been exposed to someone withCOVID-19 will be rapidly tested and what instructions they will be given 
while waiting for test results. Below, please describe any planned periodic asymptomatic staff testing cadence.  

 We will provide sub coverage for staff while they await results and students will transition back to 
distance/virtual learning while waiting for results.        

 

 

Staff asymptomatic testing cadence. Please note if testing cadence will differ by tier:  

We will follow the California Dept of Public Health guidelines which can be found at 
https://testing.covid19.ca.gov/school-testing/ 
-------- 

 

 

 Testing of Students: How school officials will ensure that students who have symptoms of COVID-19 or have 
been exposed to someone withCOVID-19 will be rapidly tested and what instructions they will be given while 
waiting for test results. Below, please describe any planned periodic asymptomatic student testing cadence. 

 Families will be advised on where to take their child to get a COVID-19 test, which can be obtained for free at 
any of the county COVID-19 testing centers.        

 

 

Planned student testing cadence. Please note if testing cadence will differ by tier: 

We will follow the California Dept of Public Health guidelines which can be found at 
https://testing.covid19.ca.gov/school-testing/ 
-------- 

 

 

 Identification and Reporting of Cases: At all times, reporting of confirmed positive and suspected cases in 
students, staff and employees will be consistent with Reporting Requirements. 

 We will ensure to follow the Reporting Requirements at all times.        
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 Communication Plans: How the superintendent will communicate with students, staff, and parents about cases 
and exposures at the school, consistent with privacy requirements such as FERPA and HIPAA. 

 School Director will communicate with all stakeholders via email, parent engagement app, and letters when 
applicable while also remaining consistent with legal privacy requirements.        

 

 

 Consultation: (For schools not previously open) Please confirm consultation with the following groups  

 We have successfully consulted with our staff, families, community, and school board.        
 

 
-------- 

 

Labor Organization 

 Name of Organization(s) and Date(s) Consulted: 

Name: School Staff -------- 
 

 

Date: February 26,2021 -------- 
 

 
  

 

 
-------- 

 

Parent and Community Organizations 

 Name of Organization(s) and Date(s) Consulted: 

Name: School Site Council - Family Meeeting -------- 
 

 

Date: February 25,2021 -------- 
 

 
  

 

 

If no labor organization represents staff at the school, please describe the process for consultation with school staff:  
-------- 

 

 

For Local Educational Agencies (LEAs or equivalent) in PURPLE: 
 

-------- 

 

Local Health Officer Approval: The Local Health Officer, for (state County) Plan, cases San Diego. County has 
certified and approved the CRP on this date: . If more than 7 business days have passed since the submission 
without input from the LHO, the CRP shall be deemed approved. 

 
Additional Resources: 
 
Guidance on Schools 
 
Safe Schools for All Hub 
 
Note: This checklist was amended on January 29th to delete language regarding the need to submit this checklist to a 
County Office of Education. The CSP does not need to be submitted to the County Office of Education as part of the 
public health guidance, though the County Office of Education may request the CSP as part of other processes. 
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http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/COVID-19/Consolidated_Schools_Guidance.pdf
http://www.doc-tracking.com/screenshots/COVID-19/Consolidated_Schools_Guidance.pdf
https://schools.covid19.ca.gov/
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